
30 January 2019

NOTICE OF MEETING

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL
will meet on

Thursday, 7 February 2019
beginning at

7:00 pm
on the

Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Alan Broadhurst (Chair)
Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Margaret Allingham
Councillor Janice Asman
Councillor Steven Broomfield
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey
Councillor Jephthe Doguie
Councillor Richard Gomer
Councillor Tim Groves
Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor Louise Parker-Jones
Councillor David Pragnell
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Performance and Governance Lead 
Specialist Tel: 023 8068 8041 Email: 
laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk

Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 
Email: natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in 

other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


Services Officer above.
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 

sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

AGENDA

1. Public Participation    

2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 2) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2019. 

3. Apologies    

4. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

5. Chairman's Report    

6. Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership Annual Review    (Pages 3 - 34)

7. Strategic Performance    (Pages 35 - 54)

8. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 55 - 58)

9. Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme    (Pages 59 - 60)

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 14 March 2019 at 7:00 pm

on the Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 
9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL

Tuesday, 29 January 2019  (7:00 pm – 7:51 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Broadhurst (Chair); Councillors Cross, Asman, Broomfield, 
Couldrey, Gomer, Groves, Parker-Jones and Reynolds

Also in attendance: Councillors 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Allingham, Jurd and 
Tyson-Payne

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

1. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation on this occasion.

2. MINUTES

It was AGREED -

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 8 November 
2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations in relation to items on the agenda on this 
occasion.

4. GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2019/20 AND FINANCIAL 
MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2018

Consideration was given to the General Fund Revenue Budget 2019/20 
and Financial Monitoring to 31 December 2018 report.  

RESOLVED – 

That the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel considered the 
Budget report and recommended it to Cabinet for approval.

1

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL 

Thursday, 7 February 2019 

EASTLEIGH COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL 
REVIEW

Report of the Safety and Resilience Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel

(1) Note the work undertaken by the Community Safety Partnership over the past 
twelve months in the Borough.

(2) Note the findings in the annual strategic review and the adoption of the three 
priorities for the coming period until the end of March 2020.

Summary
This report provides a summary of the work undertaken by the Eastleigh Community 
Safety Partnership over the last year.  It highlights the key priorities of the Partnership, 
reviews the levels of crime and anti-social behaviour in the borough and updates on 
significant events and projects that have occurred in the last year.

Statutory Powers

s.19-21 Police and Justice Act 2006

Strategic Implications 

1. Creating healthy communities: To enable health and wellbeing. By working 
together to reduce both actual and the fear of crime and disorder and thus 
promote wellbeing in the community.

Introduction

2. The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is established under the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 and requires the named organisations to work in 
partnership to tackle crime and disorder along with anti-social behaviour, drug 
and alcohol abuse and reducing reoffending. Additionally, the Authorities are 
required to produce an annual strategic assessment and from that deliver an 
action plan having identified the strategic priorities for the year.

3

Agenda Item 6



Eastleigh Borough Council

3. The Police and Justice Act 2006 introduced powers for the Local Authority to 
scrutinise the work being undertaken by the CSP. This is a power to examine 
the work of the partnership as a whole rather than a power to scrutinise the 
actions and work of individual partners. The Act requires Local Authorities to 
designate a committee as a crime and disorder committee with responsibility 
for the “Responsible Authorities” (the CSP Partners). The Policy and 
Performance Scrutiny Panel is the designated Committee to carry out this 
review annually. 

4. The Responsible Authorities of Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership are:

Eastleigh Borough Council
Hampshire County Council
Hampshire Constabulary
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
Hampshire and Isle of Wight (IOW) Community Rehabilitation Company 
Hampshire Youth Offending Team
National Probation Service
NHS West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group

In addition to the Responsible Authorities, One Community – Eastleigh is also 
represented. Senior officers from each of the authorities set the strategic 
direction of the CSP through an Executive Board, the Chair of which is 
Councillor Tonia Craig, Portfolio Member for Health.

Annual Strategic Review

5. The Community Safety Partnership completed its annual strategic 
assessment (Appendix A) in September 2018.

6. In the year ending March 2018, recorded crime increased by 11.3% when 
measured against the previous year. This rise was not unique to Eastleigh or 
indeed Hampshire, as crime across the country had also risen. The analysis 
of the data examined through the strategic review identified three particular 
crime types of concern, namely

 Vehicle related theft
 Burglary
 Violent crime

In addition, there has been a rise in reports of anti social behaviour, especially 
over the summer months and a number of hot spot locations were identified 
and actions put in place to tackle the issues, working together with many 
different agencies to draw upon and use when necessary the powers 
available, but also to engage young people diverting them away from such 
behaviour into more constructive use of their time.

7. The Executive Board adopted three key priorities for the CSP for the period 
between September 2018 and the end of March 2020. These priorities are:

4



Eastleigh Borough Council

1. Reduce the incidence of all violent crime, including the prevention and 
reduction of domestic abuse

2. Reduce the incidence of anti-social behaviour

3. Tackle crime against the most vulnerable in our society including hate crime 
and elder abuse

8. Since April 2018, progress has begun to be made to reduce crime and there 
has been a fall in the level of the rise in crime and the early signs of actual 
falls in crime compared to the previous year. The CSP has adopted a new 
targeted approach to crime and anti social behaviour for 2019 and it is hoped 
that this will help bring about further reductions in crime over the coming year. 

The creation of the Tactical CSP group will bring together operational 
managers from over 20 partners working in the Borough to examine on a 
monthly basis the crime and disorder issues, identify priorities for action and 
agree those actions to be taken to help  solve the problems. It will be co-
chaired by the Safety and Resilience Manager and the District Inspector.

9. A presentation on the current status will be given by Chief Inspector Darren 
Miller, District Commander as part of the presentation of this report.

Key Partnership projects

10. The CSP has undertaken a number of targeted projects over the last year to 
help achieve its strategic priorities.  

11. Supporting Families

The Supporting Families programme has been running since 2012 and it 
operates through working with the whole family, not just the children, or a 
single family member. The aim is to identify and work with families who have 
multiple, complex issues and deliver solutions to these problems that lead to 
lasting positive changes for the family and the community. Families are often 

5



Eastleigh Borough Council

trying to deal with more than one problem at a time. This can make it difficult 
for families to get the right help and support and this is where the programme 
aims to make that difference.

The target for this year, 2018-19, is to engage 96 families, of which 32 would 
be worked with the Intensive Support Service providers who are centrally 
commissioned by the Hampshire County Council.  All families are engaged on 
to the scheme through the weekly Early Help Hub which brings together many 
partners to share information and identify those families with greatest need.

Up to the end of December 2018, the Eastleigh programme has already 
successfully engaged 94 families and filled the Council’s allocation of 32 
intensive places. The Council is  now working with Hampshire County Council 
to gain access to more intensive places to help families identified in the last 
three months of the year. It is anticipated that by the year ending 31st March 
2019 over 120 families against a target of 96 will have been engaged.

This success is due in part to a number of  initiatives   created by the  
Programme Coordinator to work with  the PCSOs, the Youth Crime 
Prevention Team , The Eastleigh housing team  and the Eastleigh Refuge to 
give them confidence to refer and  take on the Lead agency role. A payments  
by results scheme is in place through this programme and to date we have 
made one successful claim and we are now reaching the point of being able 
to submit many further claims. Change must   be shown over a period of at 
least  six months hence why there is time lag between engagement and 
potential claim. All reward payments are recycled into the programme 
delivery.

12. Eastleigh DVA Car™ Project

The DVA Cars project was established in the borough in September 2015 as 
a thee month pilot   which through its success led to a two year project which 
ran from August 2016 and funded by the CSP and Aurora New Dawn, the 
domestic abuse charity which created the programme. The project places 
police staff working alongside trained domestic violence advocates to attend 
the scenes of domestic violence incidents at high peak times over weekend 
evenings.  This gives advocates the opportunity to engage with victims 
immediately and provide trained support at the time of crisis. Normally police 
attend such incidents and then make a referral to the domestic violence 
support that is in place across the County.

13. When comparing all survivor data from the Eastleigh DVA Car™ project for 
victims accepting an ongoing support referral against the victims referred to 
the Aurora Helpline and Referral service over the same time period it is  
observed that there is a stark increase in victims accepting support when seen 
face to face.

Year 1: DVA Cars™ = 90%.  Helpline and Referral service = 58%.   
Year 2: DVA Cars™ = 80%.  Helpline and Referral service = 48%.  

6



Eastleigh Borough Council

This crisis-response service therefore engages people quickly, improving their 
safety and thus reducing the likelihood of future incidents.

14. Unfortunately, no further funding was available and thus the project has not 
been able to continue from September 2018 onwards. Aurora New Dawn has 
been discussing with the commissioners of Domestic abuse services in the 
County (Hampshire County Council and the Police and crime Commissioner) 
to try and extend this project across Hampshire.

15. Other projects have included the creation and operation of the  Community 
Court, the continued operation of Friday Night Football, the production and 
distribution to every secondary school across Hampshire and the IOW of the 
film “Suspended in a Sunbeam”  tackling the theme of  Child sexual 
exploitation and the establishment of a second  third party hate crime 
reporting centre at the  Eastleigh Citizens Advice office.  More details of these 
projects can be found in the Strategic Review document (Appendix A).

16. The Safe Places scheme has been extended this year with two new providers 
joining the scheme in Eastleigh town centre.

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/our-community/community-safety/safer-places-
scheme

17. 2018-2019 projects. 

The CSP was successful in gaining funding from the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner to undertake two small projects this year. These projects 
will help deliver  the third strategic priority of the Partnership namely  “to tackle 
crime against  the most vulnerable in our society  including  hate crime and 
elder abuse” and are being led by One Community.  

The first is a research based project to examine the extent and nature of 
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) hate crime in the Borough 
and produce a plan to increase reporting. This work started at the successful 
inaugural Eastleigh Pride in September and is being undertaken by a former 
Community Safety team intern who developed the Elder abuse project and 
training programme. 

The second project extends on this Elder Abuse project which was 
successfully delivered in 2014-2016 by the CSP. This funding will now enable 
the CSP to train other partners from around the Hampshire and IOW to deliver 
the programme created by the Eastleigh CSP. This training provides 
information and education to those working with and those at risk from 
financial and other forms of abuse. The CSP continues to run training 
sessions in Eastleigh as well.

7

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/our-community/community-safety/safer-places-scheme
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/our-community/community-safety/safer-places-scheme


Eastleigh Borough Council

Financial implications

18. The CSP receives no direct funding and has only a small reserve of rapidly 
diminishing funds. The Partnership is reliant upon its member organisations 
contributions which are  mainly human  resources rather than financial. The 
lack of funding and diminishing numbers of  staff in key partners such as 
Hampshire Constabulary will adversely affect the possible outcomes that can 
be achieved  and projects that can be run in the coming year.

19. The CSP can apply to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(OPCC) for funding for specific projects through the bi-annual grants process. 
In addition CSPs across  Hampshire and IOW can access an emergency fund  
from the OPCC to  request funding to help tackle an emerging crime and 
disorder issue within their area up to a maximum of £3000.

20. The Supporting Families programme is centrally funded by HM Government 
and Eastleigh Borough Council receives funds through Hampshire  County 
Council  to enable it to deliver the  programme. Due to this there are no net 
revenue implications to the Council.

Risk assessment

20. There are no identified risks at the time of this report.

Equality and Diversity Implications

21. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of 
opportunity, or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality 
Impact Assessment has not been carried out.

Conclusion

22. Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership has fulfilled its statutory duties over 
the last year and its members continue to work well in partnership together to 
tackle crime and disorder within the Borough of Eastleigh. As has been seen 
across the UK, crime has risen in the previous year for the first time in  many 
years but the  CSP has put in place a new  tactical approach  for 2019 to 
target its limited resources to address the  priorities identified. Eastleigh 
remains a safe place in which to live and work. 

8



Eastleigh Borough Council

MELVIN HARTLEY
SAFETY AND RESILIENCE MANAGER

Date: 14 January 2019
Contact Officer: Melvin Hartley 
Tel No: 02380 688149
e-mail: melvin.hartley@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

List Background Papers 

Appendix A  

Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership Annual Strategic Review 2018

Strategic Review 2018

9



Eastleigh Borough Council

INDEX

Introduction 3

Review of 2016-18 6

DATA SETS:

All crime 7

Most similar group 8

Violent crime 11

Burglary 13

Vehicle crime 14

Hate crime 15

Arson 15

Anti-social behaviour 16

Victims 17

Adult Offenders 18

Youth Offenders 18

Key projects 19

Analysis 23

Recommendations 24

10



Eastleigh Borough Council

INTRODUCTION

The Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is a statutory body, set up under 
the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and subsequent amending 
legislation.  Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership has a statutory duty to 
undertake an annual review of crime & disorder and this report has been written 
using data extracted from a variety of sources.  

From this  report a set of  priorities for the partnership for the coming 2 years will be  
identified These priorities link directly to those that are in the wider Hampshire & Isle 
of Wight Police & Crime Commissioner report and that identified locally through the 
District Priority and Tasking meeting.  The action plan to   tackle the issues identified 
in these priorities will run from September 2018 – March 2020 with a mid-way review 
undertaken to ensure the priorities remain valid.

The geographical area covered by the CSP is coterminous with the boundary of the 
Borough of Eastleigh.  The CSP has members required by statute as well as other 
partners of significance to the borough. All of these bodies and organisations are 
represented on the CSP Executive as follows:

 Eastleigh Borough Council
 Hampshire County Council
 Hampshire Constabulary
 Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
 Hampshire & IOW Community Rehabilitation Company 
 Hampshire Youth Offending Team
 National Probation Service
 One Community - Eastleigh
 NHS West Hampshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Profile of Eastleigh Borough

“The Borough adjoins the eastern and northern boundaries of the city of 
Southampton, bordering Test Valley borough to the north-west, Winchester district 
and the South Downs National Park to the north, Fareham borough to the east (with 
a shared boundary along the River Hamble and its estuary) and New Forest district 
to the south-west via a shared boundary in Southampton Water 

The main town in the Borough is Eastleigh. The Borough includes two other large 
urban areas – Chandler’s Ford and Hedge End – and some sizeable settlements at 
Bishopstoke, Fair Oak, Horton Heath, West End, Bursledon, Botley, Hamble and 
Netley. The Borough has an area of 79.8 sq. km. It is predominantly suburban in 
character, reflecting many of the pressures that might be expected in a location 
bordering a major city, but it retains some areas of countryside that are locally 

11



Eastleigh Borough Council

significant, mainly because of the separation they provide between settlements, but 
also because of their biodiversity and landscape characteristics. 

Significant features of the Borough include internationally renowned sailing venues 
on the River Hamble, a national and international cricketing venue at the Ageas Bowl 
(formerly the Rose Bowl), Southampton Airport, dance and music venues of regional 
significance at The Point and the Concorde Club in Eastleigh, Places Leisure 
Eastleigh, The Berry Theatre at Hedge End, and an important maritime, rail and air 
heritage. 

For administrative purposes, the Borough is divided into five Local Areas, each with 
its own particular characteristics and issues. Each area has a Local Area Committee 
that has been given devolved powers on many issues and which determines 
planning applications. There are 10 civil parishes. The only area that is not parished 
is the town of Eastleigh. 

According to the 2011 Census, the Borough had a population of approximately 
125,200 which is anticipated to rise to about 162,000 by the end of the plan period. 
The increase will arise both from natural growth and new residential development. In 
common with many other communities, the population is ageing – the proportion of 
people over 65 is currently around 17% and this is predicted to rise to about 24% by 
the end of the plan period. This has obvious implications for the range of services, 
facilities and accommodation likely to be needed in the Borough. 
The health of people in the Borough is generally better than the regional and 
England average but varies across the Borough and there is an increasing ageing 
population. Incidence of crime and anti-social behaviour in Eastleigh Borough is 
relatively low and decreasing, but within the community there is a disproportionate 
fear of both.” 1

1 Eastleigh Borough Draft Local Plan 2018

12



Eastleigh Borough Council
13



Eastleigh Borough Council

Review of 2016-18

Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership (CSP) published its strategic assessment in 
May 2016 and implemented a plan to deliver work on the key themes identified. The 
Executive took the decision that given the short time span, there was no need for a 
full assessment to be undertaken in 2017. A review of the crime data has revealed 
no significant changes and thus it has agreed to continue with the same key priorities 
for the year 2017-18. 

The CSP will continue to support the Police and Crime Commissioner’s priorities by 
directly linking local activity to the targets within the Police & Crime Plan 2016-2021: 

 Supporting victims and those affected by crime and disorder
 Strengthening partnerships – work together to reduce crime, promote public 

safety and create vibrant and inclusive communities
 Reduce offending -  tackling the  root causes of offending and with partners 

make early interventions to prevent reoffending

The CSP identified the following key priorities that will be addressed within this plan:

1.  Prevent and reduce the incidence of domestic and elder abuse

2.  To tackle all forms of hate crime, support victims and encourage reporting

3.  To tackle and prevent child sexual exploitation

4.  To raise understanding of safe internet usage and awareness of online crime

In addition the partnership will continue to work together to reduce crime, anti-social 
behaviour and substance misuse and reduce reoffending.

The work of the partnership towards these priorities is contained in the key projects 
chapter on page 17.

14



Eastleigh Borough Council

DATA 

Please note that unless stated all statistics refer to the year April 2017 – March 
2018

TOTAL RECORDED CRIME 

Violence without injury 1627

Violence with injury 989

Criminal damage 987

Public order 822

Other theft 781

Vehicle offences 705

Shoplifting 667

Burglary residential 397

Burglary  commercial 268

Theft of bike 191

Miscellaneous 168

Drugs offences 149

Sexual offences 145

Theft from person 60

Rape 57

Robbery personal 45

Arson 37

Robbery commercial 18

Homicide 2

Other 127

TOTAL 8315

15



Eastleigh Borough Council

  HAMPSHIRE 

Southampton 30,409

Portsmouth 27,179

Basingstoke 12,589

Havant 10,759

New Forest 10,384

Eastleigh 8,315

Gosport 7,177

Test Valley 7,167

Winchester 6,974

Fareham 6,535

16



Eastleigh Borough Council

Comparing Eastleigh with its Most Similar group

Crime - Total recorded offences (excluding fraud) for Eastleigh & Eastleigh 
CIPFA nearest neighbours for year ending 2017 Q4 (rolling)

39.86 ≤ 55.83    55.83 ≤ 57.91     57.91 ≤ 70.60     70.60 ≤ 90.55    
crimes per 1000 people offences

Source: LG Inform

17



Eastleigh Borough Council

The following councils are in our most similar group:

Adur, Sussex
Blaby, Leicestershire
Canterbury , Kent
Chelmsford , Essex
Fareham , Hampshire
Havant, Hampshire
Huntingdonshire, 
Lewes, Sussex
North Hertfordshire, 
Rochford,  Essex
Rugby, Warwickshire 
South Ribble, Lancashire
Stafford, Staffordshire

Eastleigh is ranked 10/15 in its most similar group for all crime based on number of 
crimes per 1000 population.

For other offence types:

CRIME TYPE RANKING

ALL CRIME 9

BURGLARY DWELLING 5

SEXUAL OFFENCES 6

ALL THEFT CRIMES 6

THEFT FROM PERSON 6

DRUG OFFENCES 6

VEHCILE CRIME 7

CRIMINAL DAMAGGE 9

ROBBERY 9

VIOLENCE AGAINST THE PERSON 10

PUBLIC ORDER 13

18



Eastleigh Borough Council

  

The chart shows that all crime has risen by 11.3% since the previous year 
particularly higher rises in October and November 2017, with violence without injury 
being the single biggest change year on year in these two months.

19



Eastleigh Borough Council

Violence and Public Order

Definitions:

Violence with injury includes all incidents of wounding, assault with injury. 
Homicide is included.  It also includes attempts at inflicting injury.

Violence without injury includes all incidents of assault without injury 
It also includes possession of weapons offences and a number of public order 
offences, such as harassment.

20



Eastleigh Borough Council

  

Analysis of the violence data, shown below, highlights 3 categories of violence which 
are the main areas of concern:

 Domestic violence
 Youth on youth violence 
 Alcohol related violence  in the night time economy

21



Eastleigh Borough Council

Domestic violence 

There were 1,113 crimes reported of which 356 were common assault and 343 were 
actual bodily harm. There were 370 Repeat offenders accounting for 33% of the 
total. 66% of the domestic incidents involved the spouse/partner and 28% involved 
family members.

Outcomes:   

159 offenders were charged or summonsed to court and 21 cautions were issued.

454 offences were not proceeded with as the victim did not support or subsequently 
withdrew support for a prosecution where there was a named individual offender.

Burglary

Burglary over the year has risen with spikes in the autumn and February 2018.

22



Eastleigh Borough Council

Vehicle crime

Similarly vehicle crime has risen year on year with spikes in November 2017 and 
January 2018. Research has shown that works vans in particular were targeted for 
tools and equipment, and that many vehicles from which items were stolen were 
unlocked.

23



Eastleigh Borough Council

Hate crime 

(July 2017- June 2018)

107 hate crimes and 127 hate incidents were reported

TYPE CRIMES INCIDENTS

Disability 18 21

Faith 1 1

Race 68 81

Sexual orientation 20 24

TOTAL 107 127

0.825% per 10,000 
population

Outcomes: Formal action 
taken by police (FAT) 

27

Arson

Quarter Deliberate Accidental Not known

1 39 37 13

2 17 15 6

3 17 17 5

4 19 6 4

TOTAL 92 75 28

There were 92 deliberate fires in the year and the common types were grass /crops 
(27), refuse (33) and vehicles (10). The highest months for arson were April and 
June

24



Eastleigh Borough Council

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 

(July 2017 – June 2018)

Anti social behaviour continues to cause daily problems across the borough and 
through the work of the multi-agency ASB panel the partnership works together to 
bring about sustainable solutions to the issues.

The panel works with individual offenders to change behaviour as well targeting 
hotspot locations for joint action using powers available to all the agencies where 
necessary.

In the period shown above there were a total of 2617 reports of anti social behaviour 
in the borough. The top 3 wards for reports were Eastleigh South, Eastleigh Central, 
and Hedge End Wildern. The chart below shows that the highest period for ASB is 
the summer months which is normal

During the year the ASB Panel dealt with 37 individual cases (30 Young people and 
7 adults) and 6 hotspot locations.

1 Criminal Behaviour Order was granted against an individual in Hedge End and 6 
young people were subject to Acceptable Behaviour Contracts.

25



Eastleigh Borough Council

VICTIMS and OFFENDERS

The following chart shows the breakdown in ages of Victims of crime in the Borough. 
In line with the rest of the UK, the risk of being a victim of crime reduces from the 
age of 30 onwards. 

38% of the victims were male and 36% were female. The rest of the victims the 
gender was either not recorded or the victim was an organisation rather than an 
individual.

Age % of total

Under 18s 13.89

20s 15.09

30s 14.24

40s 12.17

50 9.5

60s 4.67

70+ 3.87

Analysis of the relationship between Victims and Offenders reveals that almost half 
of victims know the offender:

 Acquaintance  16%
 Family  14%
 Partner 16%
 Neighbour 3%

 Stranger 17
 Not known 20%

26



Eastleigh Borough Council

OFFENDERS

The Hampshire and Isle of Wight Community Rehabilitation Company works with 
offenders, who have committed all but the most serious offences. Those offenders 
are managed by the National Probation Service.  In the year there were 187 
Eastleigh residents.

AGE & GENDER

18-20 19

21-25 19

26-34 55

35-49 59

50-64 36

65+ 4

M 159

F 28

The top 5 Criminogenic needs amongst these offenders are Attitudes, Emotional 
wellbeing, Relationships, Alcohol and Lifestyle

The Hampshire Youth Offending team work with young offenders aged 10 to 18 
years of age.

Most common offences committed by young people were:

 Violence  with & without injury
 Shoplifting
 Criminal damage
 Public order
 Possession drugs (15-19)
 Possession offensive weapon (15-19)

27



Eastleigh Borough Council

KEY PROJECTS 2017-18

1. Supporting Families programme

The Supporting families programme has been running now since 2012 and it is 
about working with the whole family, not just the children, or a single family member. 
The aim is to identify and work with families who have multiple, complex issues and 
deliver solutions to these problems that lead to lasting positive changes for the family 
and the community. Families are often trying to deal with more than one problem at a 
time. This can make it difficult for families to get the right help and support and this is 
where the programme aims to make that difference. 

The target for the year was to engage 120 families, of which 32 would be worked 
with the Intensive Support Service providers who are centrally commissioned by the 
Hampshire County SF team.  All families are   engaged on to the scheme through 
the weekly Early Help Hub.

By the end of the year 84 families were on the programme, of which 31 were with 
intensive providers.  

The Eastleigh team have also initiated a number of pilots working with the PCSOs, 
the Youth Crime Prevention Team and Eastleigh Refuge. This has trained staff so 
they are more prepared to nominate families for the programme having a greater 
understanding of what is required and how those they are working with can be 
helped. The success criteria for the programme are determined by the targets 
agreed at the start of the work in the family plan.  The family plan can cover up to 10 
areas of need:

• crime and anti-social behaviour
• education, children not in school
• worklessness, adults on out-of-work benefits
• young people not in employment, education of training
• problems with drugs and/or alcohol
• physical or mental health problems
• domestic violence and abuse
• families at risk of homelessness or unmanaged debts
• young children failing to thrive
• unhealthy weight and/or malnutrition concerns

If change has been sustained, lasting longer than 6 months in all the identified areas 
at the start of the   work, then a reward payment can be claimed. 

28



Eastleigh Borough Council

2. Elder abuse project

The Elder abuse project completed its first two phases in 2016 with the creation of 
the training packages that could be used to deliver awareness raising of abuse to 
both those working with older people and to groups of older people directly. Over the 
course of the last year one session has been run for   professionals.

A successful bid to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner has secured 
funding for Phase 3 of the project to enable train the trainer to be rolled out across 
the county to enable  many  workers to deliver the programme.

3. Hate crime

Two third party reporting centres now operate in the Borough at Eastleigh Museum 
and Eastleigh Citizens Advice.

4. DVA cars

The DVA cars project has been running in Eastleigh since its pilot in November 2015 
– January 2016. From August 2016 onwards a two year programme funded by the 
Community Safety Partnership and Awards for All in conjunction with Aurora New 
Dawn who led the work was started. This project enables a Domestic violence 
advocate to be on duty once a week throughout the year on a Friday or Saturday 
night accompanied by PCSO as well as on additional bank holidays.

The advocates came from Aurora New Dawn staff or contactors that are or have had 
experience in working within the domestic abuse sector and who had previous 
experience of working as a DVA Car™ advocate.  A part time day worker was 
employed  whose responsibility it was to ensure that the onward referrals were 
processed as quickly and effectively as possible after initial contact with the client.

The review of the first year until August 2017 demonstrated the effectiveness of the 
project to engage successfully with victims of domestic violence. A major benefit of 
the DVA Car™ project is that it allows the specialist advocate to obtain all relevant 
information from the victim to ensure that a focused and immediate intervention can 
be offered while at the same time it allows the police to concentrate on the crime 
reported and the investigation.

When comparing the data from the Eastleigh Year 1 DVA Car™ project for victims 
accepting an ongoing support referral against the victims referred to the Aurora 
Helpline and Referral service over the same time period we observe a stark increase 
in victims accepting support when seen face to face. 

DVA Cars™ = 90%.  Helpline and Referral service = 58%.   

This fits with the research around the ‘Window of Opportunity’.   “There is a ‘window 
of opportunity’ when people seek help and if you offer support at that point; they are 
more likely to engage with support services and the criminal justice system.” 
Evaluation of Domestic Violence Matters; Dr. Liz Kelly et all 2011 and Home Office Research Study 290 Marianne Hester and Nicole 

Westmarland, University of Sunderland 2005.)

29



Eastleigh Borough Council

The full data for the second year ending August 2018 is still being  finalised but the  
indications are that the same level of successful results have been achieved in the 
second year.

5. Friday Night Football

The Friday night football continued to operate at 3 sites (Fleming Park, The Hub and 
Botley) with the help of the funding from the CSP until the end of the financial year.

The annual figures demonstrate that Friday Night Football continues to be a positive 
and engaging project for young people. The final figures demonstrate a reduction in 
attendance compared to last year, but this is unfortunately due to the session at the 
Hub coming to an end.

The project’s main objectives are to provide a positive activity to young people aged 
10 – 19 on a Friday evening, with a view to reducing anti-social behaviour. It also 
aims to help young people meet their weekly recommended levels of physical activity 
as part of a healthy lifestyle.

September 2017 - August 2018:

VENUE AVERAGE WEEKLY 
ATENDANCE

TOTAL ANNUAL  
(BASED 49 WEEKS)

Places Leisure Eastleigh 32 1592

The Hub

*Figures impacted by cancelled 
sessions

 5   451

Botley 43 2112

CUMULATIVE 81 3195

6. Community Court

The Community Court is a peer led young people’s restorative justice   option 
whereby young people are engaged by their peers in dealing with their low level first 
offences. It exists to keep first time young offenders out of the criminal justice system 
and was piloted originally in Fareham. The training for the volunteers was completed 
by the end of 2017 and the first cases were held in March 2018. These involved 5 
young shoplifters in the Eastleigh Town Centre who all agreed to undertake various 
reparative actions in order to restore the harm they had caused. 

30



Eastleigh Borough Council

7. Suspended in a sunbeam 

In 2016 The Community Safety Partnership commissioned the Point Youth Theatre 
and its director Daniel Hill to write and produce a film on the theme of child sexual 
exploitation. The film had its Premiere during the Eastleigh Film Festival in 
September 2017 and received a great reception featuring as the lead story on BBC1 
South Today and their news bulletins throughout Friday 22nd September.

This new film draws on the thoughts and experiences of young people in Eastleigh 
shining the spotlight on the hidden crime of Chid Sexual Exploitation (CSE).

“Suspended in a Sunbeam” tells the compelling story of Kay, a 14 year old school 
girl whose life is turned upside down when she meets George at a party. Thrown into 
a world of older men, drugs drink and exploitation, Kay finds herself losing hold of 
her friends and family as she defends her developing relationship and ultimately 
suffers at the hands of her aggressors.

The 45 minute film (Certificate 15) is designed to stimulate conversation by 
addressing the concentring issue of CSE through a story that’s engages the viewer’s 
imagination.

To help support the presentation of the film, the team worked closely with 
professionals in the field including Hampshire Children services and Hampshire 
Constabulary to put together an education pack, with follow up activities, help and 
advice for dealing with referring cases of concern.  

The film premiered at the Eastleigh Film Festival in September 2017 and is the third 
educational film produced by the team, the others being Smashed (alcohol) and 
Error 404 (online bullying).  The compelling trilogy of work is intended to make a 
difference to young person’s lives.

The distribution of this film across the Constabulary area to all secondary schools 
and colleges   has been made possible through the sponsorship of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Hampshire, Isle of Wight Portsmouth and Southampton, 
Michael Lane.

8. Annual partnership event

The annual partnership event was held on the 20th March 2018 and attended by over 
60 people from more than 25 different partner organisations. Key speakers address 
the two main themes of Child Exploitation and Domestic Homicide.

31



Eastleigh Borough Council

Analysis

Though crime overall has risen this year, this is not unique to Eastleigh or 
Hampshire, as crime across the country has also risen. It is also important to note 
the following when interpreting the figures 

 “an increase in the number of crimes recorded by the police does not 
necessarily mean the level of crime has increased

 for many types of crime, police recorded crime statistics do not provide a 
reliable measure of levels or trends in crime

 they only cover crimes that come to the attention of the police and can be 
affected by changes in policing activity and recording practice and by 
willingness of victims to report”2

Whilst acknowledging the need for caution, both the Crime Survey for England and 
Wales and police recorded figures showed increases in vehicle-related theft and 
burglaries. Both crime types are thought to be generally well-reported by victims and 
well-recorded by the police and so we believe these increases to reflect genuine 
rises. Police activity, intelligence and other information demonstrates that a lot of 
these crimes of theft are drug related. 

The rise in violent crime is concerning and analysis has identified three areas of 
increase as listed on page 11. Coupled with this has been a rise in reports of anti-
social behaviour. Some of this has been as a result of increased reporting but the 
overall rise and an escalation in the seriousness of some of these incidents is 
concerning. A number of hotspot locations have bene identified this past year which 
have required substantial partnership working. Adopting early intervention measures 
accompanied by robust actions when appropriate to curb behaviours is an essential 
combination to   reducing the harm, being caused. 

Tackling vulnerabilities has long been an aim of the Partnership, encouraging 
reporting of crime and   supporting those most at risk from harm. In previous years 
this has included work on elder abuse, hate crime and child exploitation. We know 
that hate crime remains an under reported crime both national and locally.  The 
partnership has undertaken a successful elder abuse project in the last few years 
and with an ageing population as identified on Page 4, it is ever more important to 
continue to raise awareness amongst the elderly. Providing knowledge and tools to 
protect oneself also helps to tackle the fear of crime amongst the elderly which is 
disproportionate to the risk.

The partnership can through its wider membership work together to raise awareness, 
increase reporting and provide solutions to help reduce hate crime and elder abuse.

2 Crime in England and Wales: year ending March 2018, Office for National Statistics

32



Eastleigh Borough Council

Recommendations for 2018-2020

All the member organisations of the partnership have been subject to resource 
reductions in the last few years and this has limited the ability of the partnership to 
undertake work that it previously did. In the light of this it is recommended that the 
ambition of the partnership is matched to available resource in the coming 2 years.

Reviewing the data and the information contained in this strategic review alongside 
the District Policing priorities for 2018-2020 it is recommended that the Partnership 
adopts 3 main priorities:

Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership will work together to 

1. Reduce the incidence of  all violent crime, including  the prevention  and  
reduction of domestic abuse

2. Reduce the incidence of anti-social behaviour
3. Tackle crime against  the most vulnerable in our society  including  hate crime 

and elder abuse

In addition the partnership will continue with its existing projects which help in the 
overall reduction of crime and disorder across the Borough.

33



This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL

7 FEBRUARY 2019

STRATEGIC PERFORMANCE

Report of the Strategic Planning Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that  

(1) The Panel comments on the performance against outcome data presented in 
Appendix A.

(2) The Panel comments on proposals for Strategic Performance as detailed in 
the report.

Summary

The Council is developing a new approach to Strategic Planning and is implementing a 
new Corporate Performance Framework which will link our performance to outcomes for 
our residents articulated within our theme strategies.  

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to all of the Council’s strategic objectives (from the 
Corporate Plan 2015-2025).

Introduction

2. The Council is implementing new ways of working as part of the changes 
outlined in the Future Eastleigh programme. A significant part of this is the 
new approach to Strategic Planning and Performance Management.  The 
Council underwent its first strategic annual cycle during 2018/19 which has 
seen the development of Portfolio and Local Area Plans, and service 
Business Plans ahead of implementation in 2019/20. This represents a 
significant departure from previous ways of working and a change in approach 
across the Council; such a change will take time to be completed and the 

35

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

process is expected to improve year-on-year.  The comments of this 
Committee are welcomed in supporting further improvements.

3. The Council has developed a new Corporate Performance Framework with a 
greater emphasis on performance management and how we are performing 
against our objectives within the Corporate Plan and in particular, the 
outcomes we have described within our four corporate theme strategies.  

4. The diagram below shows the new Corporate Performance Framework which 
has been developed by the Performance and Governance team and forms the 
mechanism and approach to how performance will be tracked, monitored and 
reported on throughout the financial year.

5. Service-based performance will be monitored and reported on monthly 
through performance meetings between Directors and their Managers. This is 
an opportunity for Managers to report on how they are delivering against their 
Business Plan. 

6. Strategic outcome performance is owned by the Strategic Planning Team and 
will focus on how the Council is delivering against its objectives and most 
importantly, how the organisation is meeting its desired outcomes defined 
within the four corporate theme strategies. This will be tracked and monitored 
through quarterly review meetings.  

Strategic performance - outcomes

7. The Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2025 details ten high-level objectives. The 
Council has agreed four themed strategies which give details of the outcomes 
for residents that the Council is hoping to achieve against the ten objectives. 

36



Eastleigh Borough Council

The strategies include measures of these outcomes and performance against 
them (Appendix A). This performance will be updated annually. 

8. The objectives are varied, particularly in the level of influence the Council has. 
In many cases the desired outcome is subject to a number of factors external 
to the Council: the economy, government legislation, actions of other 
organisations including the public and voluntary sector and resident 
behaviour. Success in achieving the outcome may also be difficult to measure 
in the short term. 

9. In some cases there is a difficult relationship between the objective and its 
measure. For example it is not always easy to quantify congestion, wellbeing 
or a thriving economy.  There is often no single measure that corresponds 
directly with the outcome. A range of measures can be used as proxies or 
indicators of the desired outcome.

10. While it is therefore advisable to treat outcome measures with some caution, it 
is nevertheless important to include them in the overall performance 
framework as they link closely to the Council’s vision, purpose and long-term 
desired objectives, and they indicate the direction in which the Council is 
travelling.

11. Many outcome measures (e.g. Public Health data) are updated infrequently 
(annually), so are not useful to track and drive performance within a year, e.g. 
each quarter. The Council needs therefore to develop useful measures that do 
provide meaningful information about the Council’s success or otherwise in 
moving towards its objectives. 

12. The suggested role of the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel is to receive 
and comment on quarterly strategic performance information after the end of 
each quarter. (An ‘upward’ cascade of performance information will take place 
as soon after the end of each quarter as possible, as quickly as finance and 
other information can be collated, to be reviewed at team, service, 
Management Team and then Portfolio level.) 

13. It is suggested that strategic-level information should be the starting point for 
Scrutiny review. Having reviewed the overall performance of the Council, the 
Panel will be able to invite Portfolio Holders and key officers to explore 
performance in their theme areas in more detail.   

Strategic performance - outputs

14. The Council’s annual strategic planning cycle process includes thorough 
discussion with a range of stakeholders, the identification of key strategic 
activities, or outputs, that have the greatest influence and impact in achieving 
the desired outcomes. (This involves careful and creative consideration of the 
desired outcome, what works, what opportunities the Council has for influence 
and impact, what is affordable, what is acceptable, what support and 
infrastructure such activity might need, and what (new) risks might be 
entailed.)

37



Eastleigh Borough Council

15. Once such key activity has been planned for (i.e. it is included in future 
budgets and service Business Plans), the Council is able to measure the 
delivery and output of that activity.  It is proposed that strategic quarterly 
reviews, involving Portfolio Holders, will consider measures of this activity.

16. Portfolio Plans (aggregated into a single Corporate Action Plan) are currently 
being developed for 2019/20 which will include this key activity and 
performance or progress measures to ensure the activity is being delivered as 
planned. Some activity will be continuous from year to year, while other 
activity (projects) will have a limited implementation period, sometimes within 
the year, but often stretching across two or more years. Portfolio Plans will be 
presented to this Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel on 14 March 2019. 
Performance against these activities will be reported to this Committee 
starting after the completion of the first quarter of 2019/20.

17. Service-based performance will be tracked monthly by managers and 
Management Team. Output measures in Business Plans can be used to 
ensure that activity is being delivered to the right standard and quality with 
sufficient resource and efficiency. If necessary where there is poor 
performance, operational performance can be examined to find root causes 
and implement remedies.  

18. The Council is required to carry out a range of statutory functions. While it is 
strategically important that the Council complies with any such requirements, 
these activities may be less important for achieving the Council’s objectives. 
Compliance issues therefore can be performance managed operationally.

Local Area performance

19. Key activity identified by Local Area Committees is included in Local Area 
Plans and monitored by Local Area Committees.

Financial Implications

20.  Activity relating to strategic outcomes is agreed through the Council’s annual 
strategic cycle and funded through the Medium Term Financial Plan process 
and Council Budget.

Risk Assessment

21. If the Council is unable to assess its performance there is a risk that it will not 
continually improve and be able to deliver value for money for its residents.

Equality and Diversity Implications

22. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, 
or fostering good relations between different people.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment has not been carried out.

38



Eastleigh Borough Council

Conclusion

23. The report described the principles and processes required for strategic 
performance management to ensure the Council is delivering Corporate Plan 
objectives for residents.

DICCON BRIGHT
Date: 28 January 2019
Contact Officer: Diccon Bright
Tel No: 023 8068 8436
e-mail: Diccon.bright@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Corporate Plan 2015-2025
Theme Strategies (February 2018)

39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Theme Strategy (Feb 2018) Outcome measures

Environment
Priority Area Metrics Detail Performance Target

1.0: Number of sites exceeding 
NOx limits from monitoring data 
around the Borough

Provisional Air Quality diffusion tube data for 2018 is now 
available:

 Southampton Road 1 has dropped from 
44.65(2017) to 42.75, with the other ones below 
40 (Soton Rd 2 doesn’t have enough data but is 
high).

 Leigh Rd dropped below 40
 Hamble Lane dropped below 40
 Botley is lower in 2018 than 2017

There is a possibility that Oak Hill (A27 in Bursledon) 
could become an AQMA.

Positive– Data 
appears to show 
positive trend in 
all areas.

Proposed: No AQMAs 
in the borough by 
2025.

1.2: Flows on A roads counts 
(AADT)

Traffic flow is not a direct measure of congestion but 
indicates wider issues around the borough. Vehicle 
movement counts on key Eastleigh A-Roads has 
grown since 2000, the latest data for 2017 indicates 
similar or less movements that than the year before.  
Over this period there has been sustained growth on 
both Motorways. Data is currently unavailable for B-
Roads and there are specific areas (such as Hamble 
with high levels). 

Good – Data 
appears positive, 
but no data for B-
Roads

Proposed: Congestion 
increase lower than 
non-planned baseline.

Tackling 
Congestion

1.3: Localised traffic congestion 
monitoring

A localised monitoring system is currently being tested 
which will be able to provide data on traffic delays. 
Should the pilot be successful it can be used to 
monitor hotspots and create a target.

Unknown at 
present (Data to 
be available 
shortly)

TBC

41



Appendix A

Priority Area Metrics Detail Performance Target

1.4 Infrastructure Delivery Congestion increase lower than non-planned baseline 
through Infrastructure delivery in line with the Local 
Plan.

Data available 
once the Local 
Plan has been 
adopted.

Delivery plan against 
the targets.

1.4: Rail usage statistics The Office of Rail and Road produce estimates of 
Patronage at all stations in the UK1. Across all 
Eastleigh stations (inc Botley) patronage has grown 
from 15/16 to 16/17, with 22k more Entry & Exits at 
our stations. In total there are 4.7m uses of these 
stations per year.

Good – Positive 
Improvement

Proposed: Increase in 
Patronage per year.

1.5: Cycling and Walking as 
mode of travel

Census data has shown that modal share for non-car 
has decreased from 26.9% in 2001 to 23.8% in 2011.  
Cycling has slightly decreased and, but there has 
been an increase in walking 6.9% to 7.5%.

Good – Survey 
data has shown 
an overall 
decrease, similar 
to neighbouring 
areas.

1.6: Public Perception Congestion was identified as a top priority in the 2017 
local Plan consultation.

Poor – 
Congestion 
appears to be a 
major concern to 
residents

Proposed: Annual 
tracking survey 
perception 
improvement.

2.0: Increase in area of 
accessible GI

The 2016 assessment found that 41% of the borough 
has some accessible function; this is considerably 
high when compared to other areas in the Solent. 
Further assessments will need to be carried out to 
access in future.

Good – High level 
of accessible 
space.

Increase the level of 
accessible space

Green 
Infrastructure

2.1: Planning Applications 
Granted Contrary to EA advice 
on Flooding and Water Quality 
Grounds

In 15/16 there were 9 developments sites where the 
Environment Agency Raised an objection. 3 of these 
sites were overcome due to additional information 
being submitted.2

Good Proposed: Zero 
developments against 
policy per year.

1 http://orr.gov.uk/statistics/published-stats/station-usage-estimates 
2 https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/266393/AMR-2015-16-Final-version-.pdf 

42

http://orr.gov.uk/statistics/published-stats/station-usage-estimates
https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/266393/AMR-2015-16-Final-version-.pdf


Appendix A

Priority Area Metrics Detail Performance Target

2.2: Tree and woodland areas in 
the borough

The borough has good tree coverage. Over 1000 
trees have been planted as part of the Stoneham 
Lane Development. 

Good Increase the number 
of trees in the 
borough.

2.3: Electric Vehicle charging 
points in all local centres.

The number of commercial publically available 
charging points in the borough has slightly grown 
(Hamble and Eastleigh Town areas)

Average – 
Further 
installations 
expected in 18/19

Proposed: Target for 
EV charging point in 
Each Local Area

3.0: Land Audit Management 
Assessment of sites

In 2016/17 69.4% of open spaces were considered 
Grade A and 29.6% Grade B with only 0.9% Grade C.

Excellent – 
Ongoing high 
quality open 
spaces

Proposed: No areas 
below Grade B.

Excellent 
Environment for 
All

3.1: Number of fly tipping 
incidents in Eastleigh

In 2016/17 there were 700 reported incidents of fly-
tipping, a rise from 614 the year before, a steady 
increase from 428 in 12/13. Data appears to show that 
that there could be over 800 incidents reported in 
17/18

Poor – Increasing 
incidents in line 
with region 

Proposed: Similar 
level of incidents in 
2020 to 2015/16. 

4.0: Total Tonnage per 
Household

Whilst the total tonnage has gone up due to house growth, 
in 2018 waste per household (excluding HWRCs) has 
dropped for the first time in 5 years, EBC collected less per 
household in 2018 749kg than in 2016 (761kg). 

Excellent – 
Positive trend

Proposed: No net 
increase per 
Household by 2020.

4.1: Recycling Rate Recycling rate for 2018 (42%) is lower than that in 
2017 (43%). Garden waste collections is around 30% 
of the total recycling collected, weather has meant 
10% less material collected, this factor alone equates 
to a 1% drop in recycling rate. 

Poor – Drop in 
garden waste 
tonnage has 
lowered 
performance

Proposed: Local 
target of 1% annual 
increase over 5 years. 

Minimising 
Waste and 
Maximising 
Resources

4.2: Household(Residual) Waste In 2018 household waste raised by 92tn from 2017 to 
24,299tn of Household waste was collected, mainly 
due to increase in Households. 2018 was the first year 
in 5 years that total residual waste per household is 
less than the two previous years, 435kg. 

Excellent – 
Bucking national 
trend.

Proposed: No net 
increase Residual 
waste per household 
by 2020.

43



Appendix A

Priority Area Metrics Detail Performance Target

4.3: Garden Waste Total garden waste collected dropped by 10% from 
5710tn in 2017 to 5223tn in 2018.

Poor – Severely 
affected by the 
prolonged 
heatwave

Proposed: Increase in 
Garden waste 
disposed of per year.

4.4: Food(Kitchen) Waste Total food waste collected dropped from 1917tn in 
2017 to 1906tn in 2018.

Poor – New 
programme to 
launch to 
increase 
collections in 
2019

Proposed: 38kg per 
household by 2020.

4.5: Area Wide Green House 
Gas Emissions

Area wide emissions remained at 4.9tnCO2e per 
capita in 2015, the continued decline in domestic 
consumption was counterbalanced by an increase in 
Transport Emissions. This is a continuation of the 
steady decline from 7.1 in 2005.  

Excellent – Long 
term positive 
trend

National Target for a 
30% reduction by 
2020 has already 
been met. 

4.6: Energy Consumption from 
Council Services

Net emissions from Council activities dropped from 
2,121CO2e in 16/17 to 1,842CO2e in 17/18. The 
current performance is 36% below 2009 baseline 
year, exceeding the Climate Change act Target for 
2020.

Excellent – 
exceeding the 
Climate Change 
act Target for 
2020.

30% reduction in 
GHG by 2020. Likely 
to be met through 
estates efficiency.

4.7: Renewable Energy portfolio In 17/18 over 284kWh of electricity was generated by 
the Council’s solar PV, a reduction from 309k in 16/17 
in part due to temporary issue at the leisure centre. 

Good – 
Performance 
expected to shift 
back to higher 
level.

Maintain existing 
portfolio and 
potentially expand 
CHP

44



Appendix A

Health and Wellbeing

Priority Factor Measurement Current 
performance

Target

Social/
economic 
factors;

Average earnings per week £549.90 To remain above the national average

Sport England Active Lives survey, measuring 
inactivity in adults

23% currently 
inactive

0.5% decrease per annum, long term target 
of achieving 20% inactivity levels by 2025

Eastleigh Borough Councils annual residents survey, 
asking the same Active lives survey question around 
inactivity

N/A 
To boost sample of 
500 people 
interviewed in ALS

The proportion of inactive adult participants accessing 
health and wellbeing projects delivered by the health 
specialists, communications and customer service 
teams 

1100 baseline 1% increase per annum (note CSAF funding 
runs out in 2019)

% of Excess weight in adults 67.7% To be below the national average for excess 
weight in adults by 2025 (England currently 
64.8%)

Behaviour/
lifestyles 
factors

The number of children overweight and obese in year 
R & 6

Year R 23.3% 0.5% decrease per annum, long term target 
of achieving 20% target by 2025

Annual  Personal Wellbeing survey results 7.7 (out of 10, 
combined score)

Target of achieving a combined score of 8 
per annum

Health 
Service 
Factors The number of people interacting with our dementia 

programmes
Number of 
accessible cinema 
participants, aqua 
relax and events 
(e.g. tea dances) in 
the dementia 
action groups

600 people with dementia to interact with 
EBC lead programmes per annum with a 1% 
increase per annum

To 
increase 
life 
expectanc
y

Physical 
Environmen

Visitor/participation rates at our leisure venues (The 
Point/Berry, Lakeside Country Park, Itchen Valley 

1,213,614 1% increase on baseline figure, year on year.

45



Appendix A

Country Park, The Hub and Places Leisure Eastleigh 
centre) 
Need to include Wildern & Hamble figures.

t

Accessibility of LEAPs and NEAPs Aspiration for all residents to be 5 minutes 
walking time from a LEAP and 15 minute 
walk from a NEAP

Priority Factor Measurement Current performance Target
The number of personal debt cases 
recorded by the CAB

2099 cases handled in 
2016/17

Reduce by 1% per annum year on yearIncome for IMD 
(index of multiple 
deprivation)
Weighted 22.5%

Number of claimants on council tax 
support

1st April 2015 -6137 
1st April 2016 -5468
1st April 2017 -5216

Reduce by 1% per annum year on year

Employment for IMD
Weighted 22.5%

The number of job seeker claimants 435 claimants for the last 
3 months of 2017

Reduce by1% per annum year on year

Health and disability 
for IMD
Weighted 13.5%

Healthy Life expectancy gap Male 15.5
Female 17.9

To reduce the healthy life expectancy 
gap

Number of NEETS (not in education, 
employment or training) in the borough

2.7% NEETS in Eastleigh Aspire to remain one of the lowest 
NEET scores in Hampshire  

Education skills and 
training for IMD
Weighted 13.5%

Key stage 4 attainment average score 36.8% 38.2% (national average)

To reduce 
the life 
expectancy 
inequality 
gap 

Barriers (to housing 
& services) for IMD

The number of DFGs distributed by 
Eastleigh Borough Council

2015 - 234
2016 - 259

5% increase per annum for the next 5 
years (subject to grant received from 

46



Appendix A

the better care fund) Weighted 9.3%
The number of homeless cases in the 
borough

37 homeless cases in 
2016/17

To work towards no homeless cases in 
Eastleigh

Crime for IMD
Weighted 9.3%

Recorded number of crime rates for 
violence, burglary, Anti-social behaviour, 
child sexual exploitation and internet crime

2014-/15 – 5148
2015/16 - 6424

To work towards reducing crime cases 
recorded in Eastleigh 

Living environment 
for IMD
Weighted 9.3%

The number of socially isolated people 
visited by the Home visit scheme (One 
Community)

Total visits made 442 
(between April- December 
2017)

5% increase per annum, subject to 
HCC funding

47



Appendix A

48



Appendix A

Housing

Measurement

Outcome 
or 

Output 
measure

Internal 
or 

external 
measure

Measurement 
frequency

Most 
recent 
figure

Previous 
figure

Performance/  
trend

Explanation 
of 

performance 
(RAG) rating Link to data

Five Year 
Housing Land 
Supply

Outcome Internal Quarterly

5.52 (Jan 
2018 
(published))

5.3 (Oct 2017 
(published))

Needs to be 5 
or above to 
meet NPPF 
5yls 
requirements

Source: GL Hearn Housing Land Supply 
Quarterly 

‘ Annual Housing 
Supply’ 
requirements 
necessary to 
demonstrate five 
year’s housing 
land supply at 
date of 
calculation Outcome Internal Quarterly

1105

1129  

This needs to 
better 
reconcile with 
what is being 
delivered in 
reality- e.g. 
less than 1000

Source: GL Hearn Housing Land Supply 
Quarterly 

Net completions 
per 
annum                  Output Internal Annual

893

517

Plan target is 
729 (2016-
2036) Source: HCC LAMS data

Net completions 
per 
quarter                

Output Internal Quarterly

217 
(Q218/19)

159 (Q2 
17/18)

Can compare 
with previous 
year's 
quarterly 
completion 
figure. Source: HCC LAMS data

% of residential 
planning 
application (total 
dwellings) 
scheduled for 
Local Area 
Committee (from Output Internal As required

1551 (Aug 
2018)

n/a  

Over 500 total 
dwellings 
indicates good 
supply of 
applications 
coming 
through Source: EBC Major Apps database

49



Appendix A

major apps 
database)

% Local Plan site 
allocations with 
planning 
applications 
submitted 
(excluding SGO) Output Internal As required

30% 
(6/20)

n/a  

Not expected 
until plan 
adoption 2019. Source: EBC Major Apps database

Affordability 
ratios calculated 
by dividing house 
prices by gross 
annual 
workplace-based 
earnings 

Outcome External Annual

9.64 
(2017) 
(April 
2018 
published)

9.19 (2016)

Next release is 
March 2019. 
In 2017 
average for 
Hants LAs is 
10.11.  SE 
region is 11.19 
average ratio 
for 2017.

Ratio of median house price to median gross 
annual (where available) workplace-based 
earnings by local authority district, England 
and Wales, 1997 to 2017 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationand
community/housing/datasets/ratioofhousepric
etoworkplacebasedearningslowerquartileand
median  

Completion of 
net additional 
affordable 
dwellings per 
quarter

Output Internal Quarterly

66 (Q2 
18/19)

93 (Q1 
18/19)  

Target is 165 
per annum- 
first two 
quarter's 
figures 
indicate this is 
on track Source: HCC LAMS data

Completion of 
dwellings in the 
EBC Housing 
Programme Output Internal As required

66 (Oct 
2018)

0

Completions 
recorded to 
date on 3 
sites.  Total 
expected 
completions 
on sites 1304 
(so 5% 
completions 
on these sites 
in total so far) Source: Programme project managers

50



Appendix A

Housing Delivery 
Test Outcome External Annual (Nov) tbc tbc tbc

By Nov 2020 
delivery needs 
to be above 
75% of 
housing 
required over 
the previous 3 
years

Published annually by MHCLG.  Test will 
measure if delivery of housing was 
substantially below the housing requirement 
(the first Housing Delivery Test will be 
published in November 2018)

51



Appendix A

Economy

Aim Indicator Measure Baseline (2017) Targets 
Higher standard of living (outcome 
measure)

Productivity GVA per head (annual) 3.8% (2014) 3.1% per annum

Growing workforce Economic activity Working age people (16-64) in 
employment (annual)

82.5% (68,200) To be established

Higher wages (outcome measure) Household incomes Weekly earnings by place of residence 
(annual)

£549.90 To remain above national 
average.  

Greater ability for businesses to attract 
high quality staff / residents to fulfil 
potential

Educational 
attainment (annual) 

NVQ Level 4+(annual) 36.8% Increase to national 
average (38.2%) 

Employment by 
occupation (annual)

% Residents hold senior managerial or 
director roles (annual)

43.2% Increase to national 
average (45.5%)

Increase enterprise (outcome measure) Number of 
businesses 

Number of recorded businesses 
(annual)

6275 To be established

Category of 
business

Business rates revenues (monthly) To be 
established

To be established

Support business growth Business survival 
rates

Business births and deaths To be 
established

Increase survival  (at year 
1 and 3) +growth of 
enterprise 

Net growth in 
businesses

No. of VAT registrations – No. of 
business closures

+210 (2015) To be established 

Increase supporting infrastructure Net growth in 
employment land

Gross floorspace completions – land 
loss to alternative uses

To be 
established

To be established

Developer 
contributions 
secured 

S106 obligations, on-site provision, CIL 
and external funding (monthly)

To be 
established

To be established

Town & Local centre vibrancy (outcomes 
measure)

Town centre footfall Footfall data (monthly) only currently 
available in Eastleigh

To be 
established

To be established

Car park usage Car park revenue (monthly) To be 
established

To be established

Increase quality of centre offer Vacancy rates National retail void data (monthly) only To be To be established

52



Appendix A

currently available for Eastleigh established
Occupancy survey Quality of retail offer, night time 

economy, no. of independents etc
To be 
established

To be established

Number of homes Council tax revenue (monthly) To be 
established

Increase number of homes 

Customer 
satisfaction survey / 
Confidence of centre 
businesses

Leakage, Competing commercial 
centres, Spend, Transport preference, 
Reasons for using the town centre, 
Perceptions on security and safety, 
Street cleanliness, Social 
demographics, Catchment data

To be 
established

To be established

53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN: January 2019 to April 2019

This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken.

A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to:

(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 
larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or

(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 
Borough of Eastleigh.

The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework.

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

31 January 2019

Yes Housing Programme Update Cabinet  31 Jan 2019  Emily Howbrook, 
Strategy Led 
(Housing and 
Development) / 
Cabinet Member 
for Housing and 
Development

55

A
genda Item

 8



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

2

Yes Capital, Investment and 
Treasury Strategy 

Cabinet  13 Dec 2016  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

None supplied. Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 
Councillor Keith 
House

Yes Budget Cabinet

Council  

31 Jan 2019

21 Feb 2019

 Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 
Councillor Keith 
House

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  31 Jan 2019  Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 
Deputy Leader of 
the Council

4 April 2019

Yes Homelessness and Housing 
Strategy 

Cabinet  31 Jan 2019  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 

56



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

3

Yes Renewal of One Community 
Service Level Agreement 

Cabinet  4 Apr 2019  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 

Yes Renewal of Citizens Advice 
Bureau Service Level 
Agreement 

Cabinet  4 Apr 2019  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

Ross McClean, 
Strategic Lead 
(Health and 
Wellbeing) / 

Yes CIP Schemes Approval Cabinet  4 Apr 2019  Approval of capital projects 
(CIP) including funding

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 
Leader of the 
Council

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  4 Apr 2019  All Pre Decision 
Scrutinies

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 
Leader of the 
Council

FOOTNOTES:
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken.
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting.

Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Lead Specialist – Democratic Services
Publication Date: 30 January 2019

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel

Work Programme

As at 27 November 2018

Date of 
Meeting

Item for Consideration Focus for Scrutiny Additional Attendance 
By

TBC Crime and Disorder (plus 
closure of Police Station)

Commercialisation 
Discussion

11/10 Southampton Airport 
Masterplan Consultation 
Response

To consider EBC’s response to the Consultation. Jason Light

Public Transport Annual 
Report

Officer report on performance.  Cllr Airey/Jason Light

Current  5 Year Land 
Supply

Update report.  To ensure Committee are aware of current position.  
Possibly tied to performance info.

No officer attendance.

Customer Service 
Update/Performance

Emma West

Aspect Housing Information Report ahead of scrutiny in March 2019 (moved to 
March)

Emily Howbrook

Performance Targets Standing Item Gaetana Wiseman

8/11

Modern Slavery Statement Jason Light

17/01 General Fund Budget (this 
item only)

To scrutinise the budget Sarah King

07/02 Community Safety Review Annual review of performance to meet statutory duty Melvin Hartley

59

A
genda Item

 9



Current  5 Year Land 
Supply

Update report.  To ensure Committee are aware of current position.  
Possibly tied to performance

No officer attendance.

Key Performance 
Indicators

Diccon Bright

14/03 Current 5 Year supply As part of performance pack standing item G Tuck
Streetscene (to include 
grass cutting and weed 
management)

Performance of Streetscene in last 12 months, are they meeting 
SLA, are they the right targets? Can they do more? Performing 
against LAC  targets? Agency agreement with HCC for Weed 
Spray in roads.

Andy Trayer/Paul 
Naylor

Affordable Housing Scrutiny of Aspect Housing following information report Emily Howbrook
Animal Control Performance of Animal  Control against national targets
Aspect Housing Update on Aspect Housing Andy Smith
Key Performance 
Indicators

Diccon Bright

Items 
for 
2019/20

Waste Collection in new 
developments

Customer Service Update

Sustainable Transport 
Annual Reports

Sustainable Transport in 
new developments

Enforcement Strategy

To scrutinise plans for waste collection in new developments.

To scrutinise trend data (post May)

To scrutinise sustainable transport annual report

Scrutiny of new strategy

Direct 
Services/Strategic 
Planning

Emma West

Bret Willers

Bret Willers

Diccon Bright

60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Eastleigh Community Safety Partnership Annual Review
	7 Strategic Performance
	Item 7 App A

	8 Cabinet Forward Plan
	9 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme

